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1. Name

historic United Otate.3 Post Office,

and/or common old Carrollton Post Office

tv*-Georgian—"

street & number 402 Newnan Street— N/A not for publication

city, town Carrollton N/A vicinity of • oongroootenal dirtriet

state Georgia code 013 county Carroll code 045

3. Classification
Category Ownership

district X public
JS_ building(s) private

structure both
site Public Acquisition
object N/A j n process

being considered

Status
_ K occupied 

unoccupied
work in progress

Accessible
^ yes: restricted

yes: unrestricted
no

Present Use
agriculture
commercial

X educational 
entertainment
government
industrial
military

museum
park

private residence
religious
scientific
transportation
other:

4. Owner of Property

name Carroll County Board of Education/Dr. Travis Edmonsoiu Superintendent 

street & number 407 Newnan Street

city, town Carrollton N/A vicinity of state Georgia 30117

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Superior Court

street & number Carroll County Courthouse

city, town Carrollton state Georgia

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

title None has this property been determined elegible? yes X no

date federal state county local

depository for survey records Nonp

city, town state



7. Description

Condition
excellent

X good
fair

Check one
deteriorated unaltered
ruins X altered

unexposed

Check one
X original site 

moved date

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The United States Post Office, Carrollton, Georgia, built in 1914, is a Georgian 
Revival style brick building located across from the Carroll County Courthouse, just 
east of the downtown commercial district in Carrollton, Carroll County, Georgia.

The one-story rectangular structure has a raised basement faced with stone. Brick 
pilasters with stone bases and capitals divide the red brick building into bays, seven 
on the front and four on the sides. One large twelve-over-twelve pane double-hung sash 
window with stone sill and lintel is located in each bay, with a small window or stone 
panel above. The rear has much larger windows (which illuminate the central work area) 
in the five central bays and a wooden vestibule for loading and unloading mail which 
extends from the central rear bay. Imposing stone steps lead from the sidewalk to the 
centrally located main entrance on the front facade. The frontispiece-type, trabeated 
entrance is of stone. Double doors and a mullioned trarisbm"are surmounted by a promi­ 
nent" consoled cornice. Above this, an eagle with outstretched wings, sculpted in high 
relief, is framed by a stone panel. A second more modest entrance with a narrower flight 
of stone stairs is located in the southernmost bay of the west side. The building is 
capped with a denticulated stone cornice and a shallow stepped parapet which partially 
hides a hipped roof.

The post office interior has three levels: a full open basement; the main floor 
with lobby and large workroom; and a mezzanine. The lobby, located along the south 
front of the building, is finished with a terrazzo floor, marble baseboard, paneled 
wood wainscotting, plaster pilasters, and a plaster ceiling with exposed beams and 
prominent cornice. Radiators, writing desks, some lighting fixtures, and glass encased 
bulletin boards are sti^l in place. At the lobby's west end is an open two-run stairway 
to the mezzanine, and at the east end is a room which served originally as the money 
order room.' The lobby was originally set off from the post office work area by a row 
of service windows with large transoms above. When the building was converted to use 
for the Carroll County Board of Education in 1967, large display cases were inserted 
in the service window areas, completely separating the work area and the lobby. At the 
same time the"lobby was bisected by a low partition and the large open work area behind 
the lobby was divided into small office areas with walls that extend up about eight feet. 
The postmaster's office in the southwest corner, a stairway along the west wall leading 
to worker's facilities on the mezzanine, and the vertical flush board wainscotting on 
the original walls remain in place, as dpes the sense of a large open workroom. The 
mezzanine contains, along the west wall, bathrooms (with their original nickel plated 
fixtures and marble walls), changing rooms, and an office, and along the south and west 
sides a network of passages, iron ladders, and spy holes (now boarded over) known as 
the Inspector's Lookout. The lookouts were reached from a ladder located in a closet 
in the postmaster's office and provided views of the entire work area and the worker's 
restrooms.

the post 1 office is located just east of downtown Carrollton on a corner lot facing 
the Carroll County Courthouse. The lot is landscaped with grass and shrubs on the street 
sides. Cast metal lamp posts with claw feet sit on stone plinths located to either side 
of the main entrance steps. The rear loading area and parking lot is paved with brick.



8. Significance

Period
orehistoric

X

1400-1499
1500-1599
1600-1699
1700-1799
1800-1899
1900-

Specific dates

Areas off Significance — Check
archeology-prehistoric
archeology-historic
agriculture

X architecture
art

commerce
x communications

and justify bel
community plan 
conservation 
economics 
education 
engineering 
exploration/settl 
industry 
invention

1914 Builder/Architect

low
ning .

ement _

landscape architecture
law

literature
military
music
philosophy

religion
science
sculpture
social/
humanitarian 
theater

Dolitics/aovernment
X

J.M. Geary, "Representing

transportal
other (spec

local 1

the Super1

tion 
:ify)
11 si
vis

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)
Architect" (of the U.S. Treasury 
Department 

James Devault, Canton, Ohio/Contractor

The United States Post Office at Carrollton is historically significant in the areas 
of architecture, communications, and local history. Architecturally the post office is 
an excellent example of the Georgian Revival style public buildings popular nationally 
in the early years of the twentieth century. It is the only example of such a building 
in Carrollton. In terms of.communications, the building is significant as an example 
of the modern postal facilities designed for efficiency of mail handling and for comfort 
and convenience of the postal workers that were provided to many towns across the country 
in the early years of the twentieth century. In terms of local history, the post office 
is significant for its connection with William Charles Adamson (1854-1929), a prominent 
Carrollton attorney who served as a U.S. Congressman for twenty years and was responsible 
for Carrollton obtaining this large and up-to-date post office.

Architecturally, this Georgian Revival style post office is a fine example of the 
early twentieth century federal buildings built throughout the country. The Georgian 
Revival style of this building is identified by its rectangular mass, red brick facing, 
symmetrical facade, tabernacle style entrance, multi-paned sash windows, restrained ex­ 
terior detailing, classically inspired cornices, and imposing lobby. This style was one 
of several classical styles popular during this period with the Office of the Supervising 
Architect of the Treasury, which was responsible for the design and construction of most 
federal buildings. The post office was designed under the influence of Supervising Archi­ 
tect, John Knox Taylor,and J.M. Geary was "representing the supervising architect" on 
the project. It is interesting to note that the building was not well received by the 
people of Carrollton who, according to a local editorial, had expected "more beauty 
of finish and style", for the approximately $60,000 spent on the building. Subsequently, 
it has become a civic landmark.

In terms of commerce, the post office at Carrollton reflects the "modern" approach 
to mail delivery which the Post Office Department developed in the early years of the 
twentieth century. Consolidation of services in large up-to-date city facilities that 
provided delivery to outlying natural areas gradually became post office practice, and 
many of the tiny post offices that dotted the rural landscape were closed. In Carroll 
County, city mail delivery began in 1911. Some rural delivery was already underway at 
this point, and by the time the new post office was completed in 1914 the number of rural 
post offices in the country had been reduced from thirty to ten. Beginning in 1915 carriers 
began using automobiles in increasing number for mail delivery.,. ,The Carrollton Post Office 
exemplifies all the modern design features intended for efficiency of mail handling and 
worker comfort. Service windows were organized to speed transactions and a rear vestibule 
was designed to handle all incoming and out-going mail. The clerks and carriers were pro­ 
vided with comfortable changing areas and restrooms which contained steel lockers and 
showers.



9. Major Bibliographical References

See continuation sheet.

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of nominated property less than one acre.
Quadrangle name Carrollton, Georgia
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• mf m _ •12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification
The evaluated significance of this property within the state is: 

__ national __ state X local

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act 
665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and

State Historic Preservation Officer signature

has 
Recreation

of 1966 (Public Law 89- 
been evaluated 

Service,

-,-; "-••'••-•"'' Elizab 
title State Historic Preservation Officer

A. Lyon

GPO 938 835
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Carrollton, designated county seat of Carroll County in 1829 and incorporated in 
1856, remained a frontier town until well after the Civil War. The arrival of its first 
railroads in 1874 and 1888 precipitated a building boom, and the town developed rapidly 
at the center of a fertile agricultural region. Carrollton, with a population of only 
2,000 in 1914 - less than the requisite annual post office business - was an example of 
the many towns around the country that received, during this period, through the political 
influence of powerful congressmen, federal buildings far in excess of their actual need.

In terms of local history, the post office is historically significant for its 
association with William Charles Adamson (1854-1929), a native of Carroll County who 
served as U.S. Congressman from the Fourth District for twenty years. Adamson, a lawyer, 
was Judge of the City Court of Carrollton from 1885 to 1889 and City Attorney for a num­ 
ber of years. While serving in the U.S. Congress (1897-1917), he was for some time 
Chairman of the Committee on Labor and was instrumental in obtaining passage of the 
Adamson Eight Hour Law (limiting the work day to eight hours) and in organizing the 
Department of Labor. It was through Adamson's political influence that Carrollton and 
a number of nearby towns also in his district obtained their post offices. Adamson also 
directed his efforts toward developing rural Carroll County with roads and a railroad.

The above areas of significance support property eligibility under National Register 
Criteria A, B, and C. Construction of this post office in 1914 is an event which contri­ 
buted to Carrollton's development as an up-to-date community with modern communication 
facilities and supports property eligibility under National Register Criteria A. The 
post office's association with William Charles Adamson, an important local and national 
figure, supports property eligibility in terms of Criteria B. The architectural qualities 
of the building, which stands as a fine example of an early twentieth century Georgian 
Revival style federal building, supports its eligibility under National Register Criteria 
C.
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UNITED STATES POST OFFICE, CARROLLTON, GEORGIA 
Carrollton, Carroll County, Georgia

SKETCH MAP

Source: Carroll County Tax Map #65 
North: f* 
Property Boundary:



UNITED STATES POST OFFICE, CARROLLTON, GEORGIA 
Carrollton, Carroll County, Georgia

FLOOR PLAN - BASEMENT
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FLOOR PLAN - MEZZANINE
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